
 The Metropolitan District 
 water supply · environmental services · geographic information 

 

MDC 
 

  
BUREAU OF PUBLIC WORKS 

REGULAR MEETING 
WEDNESDAY, AUGUST 30, 2023 

4:00 PM 
Location Commissioners  
Board Room Adil Hoffman (C) 
District Headquarters Avedisian Johnson 
555 Main Street, Hartford Bazzano Lester 
 Bush Magnan 
 Currey Pane 
 DiBella (Ex-Officio) Patel 
 Drake  Salemi 
 Gale Steuber 
Dial in #: (415)-655-0001 Gentile Taylor 
Access Code: 2307 908 4062# Healy Torres (VC) 
Meeting Video Link  Woulfe 
 Quorum: 11  

 
1. CALL TO ORDER  
 
2. PUBLIC COMMENTS RELATIVE TO AGENDA ITEMS 
 
3. APPROVAL OF MEETING MINUTES OF JULY 12, 2023  

 
4. CONSIDERATION AND POTENTIAL ACTION RE: ACCEPTANCE OF SEWERS BUILT BY DEVELOPER 

PERMIT AGREEMENT – ANA GRACE SCHOOL, 129 GRIFFIN RD NORTH, BLOOMFIELD, CT 
 

5. CONSIDERATION AND POTENTIAL ACTION RE: SHELBOURNE AXELA LLC REQUEST TO MODIFY 
SUPPLEMENT ASSESSMENT OF 50 MORGAN STREET, HARTFORD 

 
6. DISCUSSION RE: CLEAN WATER PROJECT AND STORMWATER 

 
7. OPPORTUNITY FOR GENERAL PUBLIC COMMENTS 

 
8. COMMISSIONER REQUESTS FOR FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 

 
9. ADJOURNMENT  

https://themdc.webex.com/themdc/j.php?MTID=m892fdeceaa3df3ccd7a4abc0c66244b4


4-1 

 
ACCEPTANCE OF SEWERS BUILT BY DEVELOPER’S 

PERMIT-AGREEMENT 
 
 

To: Bureau of Public Works for consideration on August 30, 2023  
 
 The sewers outlined in the following resolution have been constructed under 
Developer’s Permit-Agreement in accordance with the plans, specifications and 
standards of the District, and the Director of Engineering has certified to all of the 
foregoing. 
 
 It is therefore RECOMMENDED that, pursuant to Section S8g of the Sewer 
Ordinances re: “Acceptance of Developer’s Sewers,” it be 
 
Voted: That the Bureau of Public Works recommends to the District Board passage 

of the following resolution: 
  
Resolved: That, in accordance with Section S8g of the District Ordinances, the 

following is incorporated into the sewer system of The Metropolitan District 
as of the date of passage of this resolution: 

 
  

Sewers In 
 

Built By 
Completion 

Date 
1 CREC – Ana Grace School, 

129 Griffin Road North, 
Bloomfield 
R19005 

Developer: CREC (Capitol Region Education 
Council) 

Contractor: Bartlett Brainard Escoll, Inc. / Milton 
Beebe 

March 17, 2023 

 
Respectfully submitted, 

 
 

 
 

Scott W. Jellison 
Chief Executive Officer 

 



August 22, 2023 

John S. Mirtle, Esq.  
Assistant District Counsel/District Clerk 
The Metropolitan District 
555 Main Street 
Hartford, CT 06103 

Re: 50 Morgan Street, Hartford, Connecticut 

John: 

This letter is in follow-up to our discussion regarding the status of 50 Morgan Street Hartford, 
CT. 

By way of background, the property historically operated as a 342-room hotel. The then current 
owner and developer of the property filed plans with the City to convert the hotel to residential 
apartments. The original developer converted the top floors to 96 apartments and obtained a CO 
for those 96 units, a copy of which is attached hereto.  

That developer fell into default on its loan and its lender foreclosed on the property in February 
of 2021. At that time the property was operating approximately 150 hotel rooms and 96 
apartments.  

Our client bought the property in June of 2021 and commenced to convert the balance of the 
hotel rooms to apartments. As part of that plan, our client reduced the number of proposed 
residential units from 252 to 192.  

As part of the conversion of the balance of the building to residential units, our client obtained an 
electrical building permit for an additional 96 units (a copy of which is attached hereto) which, 
once completed, will bring the total number of units from 96 to 192.  

At this juncture, there are no plans to create any more than the 192 units currently contemplated. 

Therefore, the owner hereby requests that the allotted number of units for this project be reduced 
from 252 residential units to 192 residential units. 

Sincerely, 

Scott P. Consoli 

One Financial Plaza 
755 Main S treet 
Har tford, CT 06103 
(860) 986- 7570
cblawgr p.com

5-1



5-2



CITY OF HARTFORD

DEPARTMENT OF DEVELOPMENT 
SERVICES

DIVISION OF LICENSES & INSPECTIONS
260 CONSTITUTION PLAZA

HARTFORD, CONNECTICUT 06103
TELEPHONE: (860) 757-9200LUKE A. BRONIN

MAYOR

ELDA SINANI
DIRECTOR OF LICENSES 

AND INSPECTIONS

E
Electrical - BT-ELEC-2022-07435

Permit Issue Date: 05/06/2022Parcel Number: 268293023

Application Date: 04/29/2022

50 MORGAN ST 

THIS PERMIT HAS BEEN ISSUED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE APPLICATIONS AND PLANS APPROVED BY 
LICENSES AND INSPECTIONS. ALL WORK MUST BE DONE IN STRICT ACCORDANCE WITH LOCAL, STATE, 

AND FEDERAL CODES

Estimated Cost:

Permit Fee Paid:

Owner:

$13,656.74 

SHELBOURNE ALEXA LLC

Andrew (COMMUNITY MANAGER

61 

$449,000.00 

Description of Work: WIRE 96 APARTMENTS PER CODE AND ELECTRICAL DRAWING. INSTALL 100 AMP 
ELECTRICAL PORCH PER APARTMENT. FEEDER POWER TO ELECTRICAL PANEL DONE 
BY OTHER ELECTRICAL CONTRACTOR. REWIRE NEW HALLWAY LIGHTS USING EXISTING 
CIRCUITS.

COPY OF THIS PERMIT SHALL BE KEPT ON THE SITE OF THE WORK PROTECTED FROM WEATHER BUT 
ACCESSIBLE UNTIL THE COMPLETION OF THE PROJECT

Acting Building Official

Inspections:

Electrical Consultation (C) Electrical Final (C)

Electrical Rough (C) Electrical Third Party (C)

Electrical Underground (C) Fire Final (C)

Contractor: F & S ELECTRIC SERVICES LLC
JASON FERRARIA
42 WOODLAWN STREET 
W HARTFORD CT 06110-2346 5-3



58 ■ July 12, 2023                      BUREAU OF PUBLIC WORKS    
  
 

BUREAU OF PUBLIC WORKS 
SPECIAL MEETING 

555 Main Street, Hartford 
Wednesday, July 12, 2023 

 
Present: Commissioners John Avedisian, Donald Currey, David Drake, John Gale, 

Allen Hoffman, Gary Johnson, Dominic Pane, Pasquale J. Salemi, David 
Steuber, Alvin Taylor and District Chairman William DiBella (11) 

 
Remote 
Attendance: Commissioners Andrew Adil, Joan Gentile and James Woulfe (3)  
 
Absent: Commissioners John Bazzano, Richard Bush, James Healy, Byron Lester, 

Maureen Magnan, Bhupen Patel and Calixto Torres (7) 
 
Also  
Present: Commissioner Peter Gardow (Remote Attendance) 
  Commissioner Jean Holloway  
  Commissioner Jacqueline Mandyck 
  Scott W. Jellison, Chief Executive Officer 

Christopher Stone, District Counsel  
John S. Mirtle, District Clerk 
Christopher Levesque, Chief Operating Officer 
Kelly Shane, Chief Administrative Officer 
Robert Barron, Chief Financial Officer 
Jamie Harlow, Director of Human Resources (Remote Attendance) 
Susan Negrelli, Director of Engineering 
David Rutty, Director of Operations 
Robert Schwarm, Director of Information Technology   
Michael Curley, Manager of Technical Services 
Jason Waterbury, Senior Project Manager 
Jeff King, Construction Manager 
Bill Pallis, Manager of Information Services 
Chris Taveras, Network Analyst  
Carrie Blardo, Assistant to the Chief Executive Officer 
Julie Price, Executive Assistant 
Dave Baker, IT Consultant (Remote Attendance) 
Joseph Szerejko, Independent Consumer Advocate (Remote Attendance) 

 
 

CALL TO ORDER 
 

The meeting was called to order by Chairman Hoffman at 4:05 PM 
 
 

PUBLIC COMMENTS RELATIVE TO AGENDA ITEMS 
 

Elizabeth Bryden of West Hartford read from her below written comments: 
 



BUREAU OF PUBLIC WORKS        July 12, 2023 ■ 59 
 
 
July 12, 2023 Comments for the Bureau of Public Works Special Meeting related to agenda item # 5 

“Consideration and Potential Action re: Sewer House Connection Program” 

Good evening, 

Thank you for allowing me the opportunity to share my feedback on agenda item #5, the proposed Sewer House 
Connection Program. My name is Elizabeth Bryden and I am an MDC customer and home owner from West 
Hartford.  

On May 30, 2023 I shared my feedback on the proposed sewer ordinance revisions at the Public Hearing that was 
held and I attended Monday’s finance committee meeting as well. Today I’d like to briefly share some additional 
thoughts.   

I am glad to see the new program that is being proposed will offer some relief to homeowners should they need 
to make repairs to the sewer laterals on their own private property. However, as I commented previously, they 
do not currently address some of the other issues customers are facing especially as it relates to the issue of 
retroactivity and potential reimbursement for repairs that have already been made out of necessity. 

To illustrate my point, I’d like to briefly share the issue I am currently dealing with with my home. In January, 
2023, we had a sewage back-up into our home and called the MDC emergency line. They came out that night 
and explained the process to follow and also gave us the recommended contractors for repair. We arranged for 
an MDC-approved contractor to come out and assess the situation. 

We learned through the contractor and the MDC staff who came on site during this process was that our sewer 
line did not go to the street as many do, but it actually went down the hill behind our house and off our property, 
onto our neighbor’s property and into the woods behind their house before connecting to the main sewer line. A 
camera determined the line on our property was clear and the issue was some tree roots in the pipe in the woods 
behind my neighbor’s house. As a result of the back-up, we were not able to remain in our home for over a week, 
our finished basement now requires significant repair and our lawn was destroyed in several big areas due to the 
trucks and the stones needed to fix the situation. Ultimately a pipe had to be replaced in the woods on my 
neighbor’s property and it cost us $12,283. Our house and lawn have yet to be repaired and it is now almost 6 
months later. 

It is important to note that due to the way the pipe was structured, we had absolutely no access as homeowners 
to this pipe for maintenance or repair, nor was there any agreement in place. The proposed program doesn’t 
address situations like this one, where we were held responsible for pipes that are on someone else’s property 
and to which we had no access or authority over. 

In addition, the proposed Sewer House Connection Program currently does not address the issue of retroactivity 
and it should, as I’m sure there are others dealing with situations like mine. Related to this issue is the new fund 
announced by the Governor on June 26, 2023. As you know, the new Hartford Sewerage System Repair and 
Improvement Fund helps homeowners in North Hartford who have been impacted by sewage issues, which is 
great. As I understand it, this program allows homeowners who have been impacted by damage on or after 
January 1, 2021 to apply for reimbursement.  

Given that this new fund for Hartford residents allows for retroactive reimbursement, I believe the new Sewer 
House Connection program should also allow for this to help other MDC customers who have been affected by 
costly sewer issues and repairs.  I would like to again, respectfully request that language allowing retroactive 
reimbursement be added to the Sewer House Connection Program or, at a minimum, some language be added 
that allows for some retroactive reimbursement for unique situations, like my own. 



60 ■ July 12, 2023                      BUREAU OF PUBLIC WORKS    
  
 
I appreciate the opportunity to share my thoughts today-thank you for your time. 

Elizabeth Bryden 

120 Sunny Reach Drive  

West Hartford, CT 

 
Independent Consumer Advocate Joseph Szerejko stated that he also supports retroactivity 

pertaining to Agenda Item #5 “Sewer House Connection Program.” 
 
 

APPROVAL OF MEETING MINUTES 
 

On motion made by District Chairman DiBella and duly seconded, the 
meeting minutes of May 31, 2023 were approved. 

 
 

Commissioner Steuber entered the meeting at 4:16 PM 
 
 

MODIFICATION OF STATE OF CT DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY & ENVIRONMENTAL 
PROTECTION CONSENT ORDER #COWRMU22002 

 
 
To: Bureau of Public Works for consideration on July 12, 2023 
 
On November 7, 2006 the District entered into Consent Order No. WC5434 with CT DEEP to 
implement actions to abate overflow from both sanitary and combined sewers throughout the 
District.  In December 2012, the District submitted a required Long-Term Combined Sewer 
Overflow Control Plan update to CT DEEP which was approved in April, 2015.  In 2012, the 
EPA developed an integrated planning framework that offered the opportunity for the regulated 
community to develop an integrated plan to meet multiple Clean Water Act requirements while 
also considering other infrastructure improvements and affordability issues, such as 
improvements to the District’s drinking water system and associated costs.  In 2019 the Water 
Infrastructure and Improvement Act became federal law and amended the Clean Water Act to 
include the integrated planning framework. In December 2018, per the Consent Order, the 
District submitted another update to its Long-Term Control Plan to CT DEEP. The update plan, 
titled Integrated Plan and Long-Term Control Plan (“2018 LTCP/IP”), incorporates an 
integrated planning concept and identifies the next iteration of actions with associated 
timelines for meeting the requirements of the CSO Control Policy and water quality standards.   
 
On September 19, 2022, the District and CT DEEP executed a new Consent Order to 
supersede the 2006 Consent Order No. WC5434.  CT DEEP determined that the 2018 
LTCP/IP constitutes a new program and approach to achieving the requirements of the CSO 
Control Policy and water quality standards, and as such the District is authorized to de-
authorize certain outstanding projects and associated outstanding bonds authorized to 
complete those projects delineated in the 2005 LTCP and the 2012 LTCP. Upon doing so, the 
first phase of the Clean Water Project, established under the LTCP and the 2012 LTCP was 



BUREAU OF PUBLIC WORKS        July 12, 2023 ■ 61 
 
 
concluded as to the de-authorized projects. On June 7, 2023, the District submitted a plan 
proposing revision to the actions and project schedule required by the 2022 Consent Order 
(#COWRMU22002) for the Integrated Plan Implementation Phase I.  This submittal proposes 
sewer mitigation projects within the public right-of-way and on private property, including 
private stormwater disconnections and house connections (“lateral”) repair or replacement.  
These revisions are being proposed to mitigate combined sewer overflows and to protect 
public health and safety in the communities with combined sewers.  CT DEEP proposed a 
Modification to Consent Order #COWRMU22002 to implement changes to the actions and 
project schedule of the consent order. 
 
It is RECOMMENDED that it be 
 
VOTED: That the Bureau of Public Works recommends to the District Board 

passage of the following resolution: 
 
RESOLVED: That the Chief Executive Officer of The Metropolitan District, Scott W. 

Jellison, on behalf of the District, hereby is authorized, empowered and 
directed to execute the Consent Order #COWRMU22002 Modification with 
the State of Connecticut Department of Energy & Environmental 
Protection. 

 
Respectfully submitted, 

 
Scott W. Jellison 

  Chief Executive Officer 
 
 
 



62 ■ July 12, 2023                      BUREAU OF PUBLIC WORKS    
  
 

 



BUREAU OF PUBLIC WORKS        July 12, 2023 ■ 63 
 
 

 



64 ■ July 12, 2023                      BUREAU OF PUBLIC WORKS    
  
 

 



BUREAU OF PUBLIC WORKS        July 12, 2023 ■ 65 
 
 

 



66 ■ July 12, 2023                      BUREAU OF PUBLIC WORKS    
  
 

 



BUREAU OF PUBLIC WORKS        July 12, 2023 ■ 67 
 
 

 



68 ■ July 12, 2023                      BUREAU OF PUBLIC WORKS    
  
 

 



BUREAU OF PUBLIC WORKS        July 12, 2023 ■ 69 
 
 

 



70 ■ July 12, 2023                      BUREAU OF PUBLIC WORKS    
  
 

 



BUREAU OF PUBLIC WORKS        July 12, 2023 ■ 71 
 
 

 



72 ■ July 12, 2023                      BUREAU OF PUBLIC WORKS    
  
 

 



BUREAU OF PUBLIC WORKS        July 12, 2023 ■ 73 
 
 

 



74 ■ July 12, 2023                      BUREAU OF PUBLIC WORKS    
  
 

 



BUREAU OF PUBLIC WORKS        July 12, 2023 ■ 75 
 
 

 



76 ■ July 12, 2023                      BUREAU OF PUBLIC WORKS    
  
 

 



BUREAU OF PUBLIC WORKS        July 12, 2023 ■ 77 
 
 

 



78 ■ July 12, 2023                      BUREAU OF PUBLIC WORKS    
  
 

 



BUREAU OF PUBLIC WORKS        July 12, 2023 ■ 79 
 
 

 



80 ■ July 12, 2023                      BUREAU OF PUBLIC WORKS    
  
 

 



BUREAU OF PUBLIC WORKS        July 12, 2023 ■ 81 
 
 

 
 



82 ■ July 12, 2023                      BUREAU OF PUBLIC WORKS    
  
 

 
On motion made by District Chairman DiBella and duly seconded, 

the report was received and resolution adopted by unanimous vote 
of those present. 

 
 
 

Commissioner Woulfe exited the meeting at 5:07 PM 
 
 
 
 
 

SEWER HOUSE CONNECTION PROGRAM 
 

To: Bureau of Public Works       July 12, 2023  
 
 In 2019, the District Board established a Sewer Lateral Installation Program to assist 
property owners with the cost to renew or install a sewer house connection to their property by 
paying the District the costs over time.  At the April 24, 2023 Bureau of Public Works meeting, 
the Bureau referred proposed ordinance revisions to the Committee on MDC Government 
related to changing District policy on the repair of sewer house connections on private 
property.  The proposed ordinance revisions do not eliminate the property owner’s ownership 
of, and maintenance responsibility for, the full length of the sewer house connection.  But, if 
implemented the revised ordinances would permit the District to perform sewer maintenance or 
repair work on the private property portion of the sewer house connection.  The Committee on 
MDC Government held a public hearing on the ordinance revisions on May 30, 2023.  In 
addition to the forthcoming change to District policy and ordinances regarding repair of sewer 
house connections on private property, Staff recommends the Sewer Lateral Installation 
Program be discontinued and a new Sewer House Connection Program (the “Program”) be 
established as described herein.  The Program will support new sewer house connections and 
address failing private property sewer house connections by allowing for the installation of new 
or renewed (i.e., replaced or rehabilitated) sewer house connections on private property to be 
funded by the District. 
   
 The benefit of renewing sanitary sewer house connections is a reduction in infiltration 
from private property (contributing to the goals of the Clean Water Program), more effective 
Customer Service/Operations involvement in renewing house connections extending onto 
private property, and reduction of potential private property backups caused by deteriorated 
house connections, root intrusion, etc.   
 

The Program includes five different scenarios, shown in the table below, based on a 
property owner’s needs.  Per MDC Sewer Ordinances § S1b, a sewer “house connection” is a 
pipe connecting a property to the main sewer.  A “lateral” is a capped pipe laid towards a 
property during the original construction of a main sewer for the purpose of a future house 
connection for the property. 

 
GENERAL CONDITIONS 



BUREAU OF PUBLIC WORKS        July 12, 2023 ■ 83 
 
 
 
Prior to acceptance into the Program, contracts and/or price quotes between the property 
owners and their contractor(s) must be submitted to Utility Services for review to verify the 
reasonableness of the scope of work and cost proposal.  The District reserves the right to deny 
any price proposal. Any increase in the price due to unforeseen circumstances must be 
approved by the District prior to funding.  The owner shall be bound to the terms of the written 
contract with contractor.    If the contractor requires a deposit, the property owner will be 
responsible to pay the contractor.  Monthly payments will be a separate line item on the water 
bill. There will be no pre-payment penalties. 
 
 
 
PROPERTIES NOT CURRENTLY CONNECTED TO MDC SEWER (Scenarios 1, 
2 & 3) 
 

For new house connection installations, the property owner will have the ability to hire a 
private contractor to install sewer house connections on private property and fund the entire 
new sewer connection cost (assessment plus construction costs), with reimbursement to the 
District by the property owner over time. Upon satisfactory completion of the work, the District 
will pay the property owner’s contractor for the cost of the work, up to $10,000, and the 
property owner will sign a voluntary lien and repay the District over time, including interest at 
the same rate as sewer assessments (6%).  The Program would offer property owners the 
ability to roll the installation costs of a new house connection into the property’s assessment 
and for property owners to pay for the installation of house connections as part of their monthly 
water bill. The Program would be limited to 6-inch house connections for residential properties.  
Exceptions to the service size or type would be subject to approval by the Chief Executive 
Officer or his/her designee.  Sewer house connections will only be funded if the house 
connection is built in accordance with District standards, permitted and inspected by the 
District. 

 
For new house connection installations, the Program shall be funded from a Sewer 

House Connection Revolving Fund.  In 2019 as part of the Sewer Lateral Installation Program, 
the District Board established the Sewer Lateral Revolving Fund with funds from the 
Assessable Sewer Fund.  The Sewer Lateral Revolving Fund currently has a balance of $1.17 
million and will be renamed the Sewer House Connection Revolving Fund. Coupled with the 
revenue from the principal and interest payments, the Sewer House Connection Revolving 
Fund is expected to be self-sustaining. 
 
PROPERTIES CURRENTLY CONNECTED TO MDC SEWER 
(Scenarios 4 & 5) 
 

For maintenance/inspection and renewal of existing house connections, the Program 
will be funded from the Clean Water Program Rate Stabilization Fund and/or applicable grant 
funding. 
 
Maintenance and/or Inspection of Existing House Connections 
 



84 ■ July 12, 2023                      BUREAU OF PUBLIC WORKS    
  
 

 For property owners with existing sanitary house connections, the property owners are 
responsible for maintenance of the entire length of house connection per MDC Sewer 
Ordinance § S3s, “Maintenance of Sewer Connections”. As part of the Program, the District 
will offer emergency and non-emergency maintenance and inspection services and provide 
funding for scheduled renewal of the house connection upon request of the Property Owner.  

 
For maintenance and inspection services, the District will offer the property owner a 

qualified registered contractor to perform sewer rodding and/or CCTV inspection services at no 
cost to the property owner.  Alternatively, the property owner may hire their own contractor to 
perform the services and the District will reimburse the property owner up to $200 for a sewer 
rodding and/or $300 per CCTV inspection.  Reimbursement is contingent upon the property 
owner obtaining a permit from Utility Services and arranging for an inspector to be on-site to 
witness the maintenance. Increases in reimbursement amounts will be subject to approval of 
the Chief Executive Officer or his/her designee. If the property owner chooses to utilize the 
District’s qualified registered contractor, prior to the District’s contractor performing any 
maintenance or inspection services the property owner will be required, in writing, to authorize 
the District and its contractor to perform the sewer rodding and/or CCTV inspection and 
release the District from any claims and liability for any damages incurred at the property that 
resulted from, or were caused by, a blockage within or the condition of the property’s sewer 
house connection.  The property owner shall also acknowledge in writing that the District is not 
assuming control or ownership over the house connection. 

 
Following the maintenance and inspection services, the District will provide the property 

owner a report detailing the condition of the house connection based on the inspection. The 
District will utilize NASSCO guidelines, or other comparable industry guidelines, for 
assessment of the pipe’s condition. If the condition report indicates that the house connection 
presently requires repair, then the District will schedule renewal of the house connection. The 
timeline for performing the renewal will be based on the condition of the pipe and the District’s 
contractors’ availability.  The Property Owner must fully participate in the Backwater Valve and 
Private Property Inflow Disconnect Program before the District will perform renewal of the 
house connection.   

 
If the condition report indicates that renewal of the house connection is not presently 

needed and routine maintenance can be performed to extend the life of the house connection, 
the District will provide the property owner with written instructions for a future maintenance 
plan including appropriate maintenance activities with suggested frequencies. Execution of the 
maintenance plan, including power rodding and/or CCTVing, will be the responsibility of the 
property owner at his/her own cost. The District will provide an estimated timeline for future 
inspection of the house connection based on the condition of the pipe and the potential 
likelihood of the house connection needing renewal in the future.  Such timeline will be 
consistent with and based on criteria from the District’s Capacity Management, Operations and 
Maintenance (CMOM) program for public sewer mains.  

 
Renewal of Existing House Connections 
 

Scenarios 4 & 5 relate to house connection renewals which may include pipe lining, 
pipe bursting or pipe replacement. Renewals must be for the full length of the house 



BUREAU OF PUBLIC WORKS        July 12, 2023 ■ 85 
 
 
connection piping rather than only a damaged portion. If the property owner wants to point 
repair only a damaged section of the house connection, it will not be eligible for the Program.  

 
For Scenario 4, the District will provide funding up to $10,000 for the property owner to 

renew the private portion of the house connection.  The property owner will be responsible for 
contracting with a licensed drainlayer or qualified, bonded and insured contractor.  The District 
will provide the property owner its list of qualified contractors. Following completion and 
acceptance of the renewal work, the District will pay the contractor up to $10,000.  

 
For Scenario 5, if the District is rehabilitating or replacing a main line sewer under a 

construction contract, private property owners may participate in this program and have their 
house connection renewed at no cost. For circumstances where the length of the house 
connection or other factors make full renewal exceed $10,000 in cost, the District reserves the 
right to renew the house connection under Scenario 4 where the District pays $10,000 and the 
property owner would be required to pay for any work in excess of the $10,000 limit.   
 
Therefore, it is RECOMMENDED that it be 

 
VOTED: That the Bureau of Public Works recommends to the District Board passage of 

the following resolution: 
 
RESOLVED: That the Sewer Lateral Installation Program approved in 2019 is hereby 

discontinued and the Sewer House Connection Program as described above and 
herein is hereby established: 

 
 

Scenario Sewer Type 
 
New 6-inch House 
Connection in Public 
Right of Way 

 
 
New 6-inch House 
Connection in 
Private Property 
  

House Connection 
Renewal ** 

1 
New sewer 

main –  
Layout & 

Assessment 

District installs as part of 
the project, cost to 

property owner $4,420* 
plus frontage and dwelling 

unit assessment 

 
Property owner 

responsible for actual 
cost. District pays 

contractor and property 
owner repays District 

over time 
 
  

N/A 

2 
Existing sewer 

main with 
existing lateral 

in ROW 

District installed as part of 
the previous project, cost 
to property owner $4,420* 
plus frontage and dwelling 

unit assessment 

 
Property owner 

responsible for actual 
cost. District pays 

contractor and property 
owner repays District 

over time. 
 
  

District responsible for 
public portion within the 

ROW. 



86 ■ July 12, 2023                      BUREAU OF PUBLIC WORKS    
  
 

3 
Existing sewer 
main with no 

lateral in ROW 

Property owner 
responsible for actual cost 
plus any assessment or 
connection charges due. 
District pays contractor 

and property owner repays 
District over time. 

 
 
 
 

Property owner 
responsible for actual 

cost. District pays 
contractor and property 
owner repays District 

over time. 
 
 

  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

N/A 
 
 
 
 
 
  

4 

 
Existing sewer 

main with 
existing house 
connection to 
be renewed or 
replaced not 
under MDC 
construction 

contract 

 
N/A 

 
N/A 

 
Property Owner hires 
contractor to renew or 

replace house connection  
and District will pay 

contractor up to $10,000.  
 

Property owner must fully 
participate in BWV 

Program, as determined by 
the District, to qualify. 

  

5 

Existing sewer 
main with 

existing house 
connection to 
be renewed or 
replaced under 

MDC 
construction 

contract 

N/A N/A 

 
With Property Owner 

permission, the District or 
its contractor will renew or 
replace house connection 

at no cost to property 
owner.  

 
Property owner must fully 

participate in BWV 
Program, as determined by 

the District, to qualify. 
 

 
*$4,420 – prevailing rate per lateral or inlet 
** Renewals to include lining of lateral, require Private Property Inflow Disconnect work with 
prequalified contractors 
 
 
Criteria of House Connection Program Scenarios 1, 2 & 3 
(New House Connections):   
 



BUREAU OF PUBLIC WORKS        July 12, 2023 ■ 87 
 
 

• Properties requiring a new sanitary sewer house connection of 6” abutting an MDC 
sewer main.  Exceptions to the lateral size or type is subject to approval of the Chief 
Executive Officer or his/her designee. 

• Sewer house connections must be built to MDC standards by qualified, licensed, 
bonded and insured contractors. 

• Limit of $10,000 per property for sewer house connection installation for all work in 
public right-of-way and private property. Amount owed by property owner will be paid to 
District over fifteen years with same interest rate as sewer assessments (6%). 

• Contracts and/or price quotes between the property owners and their contractors must 
be submitted to Utility Services for review to verify the reasonableness of the scope of 
work and/or cost proposal.  The District reserves the right to deny any cost proposal.  
Any increase in the price of construction must be approved by District in order for 
property owner to receive any increase of District payment to contractor.  

• Property owner bound to terms of the written contract with contractor. 
• The property owner will be required to provide written acceptance of the completed 

work in order for the District to issue payment to the contractor.  Failure by the property 
owner to provide written acceptance will not alleviate the property owner’s responsibility 
to pay the contractor for the completed work.   

• Property owner shall indemnify the District for all claims for damages arising out of the 
work performed at the property. 

• Property owner will sign a voluntary lien to be recorded on the land records and repay 
the District by monthly payments as a separate line item on the water bill. 

• Any deposit required by the contractor will be the sole responsibility of the property 
owner.  

• No pre-payment penalties 
• Funded from a revolving fund in the Assessable Sewer Fund 

 
Criteria of House Connection Program Scenarios 4 & 5  
(Existing House Connections) 
 
Maintenance and/or Inspection of Existing House Connections  

• The District will offer the property owner a qualified registered contractor to perform 
sewer rodding and/or CCTV inspection services at no cost to the property owner.  
Alternatively, the property owner may hire their own contractor to perform the services 
and the District will reimburse the property owner up to $200 for a sewer rodding and/or 
$300 per CCTV inspection.  Reimbursement is contingent upon the property owner 
contacting Utility Services to arrange for an inspector to be on-site to witness the 
maintenance. Increases in reimbursement amounts will be subject to approval of the 
Chief Executive Officer or his/her designee.  

• If the property owner chooses to utilize the District’s qualified registered contractor, prior 
to the District’s contractor performing any maintenance or inspection services the 
property owner will be required, in writing, to authorize the District and its contractor to 
perform the sewer rodding and/or CCTV inspection and release the District from any 
claims and liability for any damages incurred at the property that resulted from, or were 
caused by, a blockage within or the condition of the property’s sewer house connection.   

• The property owner shall also acknowledge in writing that the District is not assuming 
control or ownership over the house connection. 



88 ■ July 12, 2023                      BUREAU OF PUBLIC WORKS    
  
 

• Property owner must fully participate in BWV Program, as determined by the District, to 
qualify. 

• Renewals shall be installed for the full length of house connection pipe.  Point repairs do 
not qualify for the Program. 

• Sewer house connections renewals must be built to MDC standards by qualified, 
bonded and insured contractors. 

 
Scenario 4 

• Limit of $10,000 per property for sewer house connection renewal for all work in private 
property. Any costs above $10,000 will be the property owner’s responsibility and either 
paid at the time of work or the property owner can enter a payment plan with the District 
and sign a voluntary lien to be recorded on the land records. 

• Contracts and/or price quotes between the property owners and their contractors must 
be submitted to Utility Services for review to verify the reasonableness of the scope of 
work and cost proposal.  The District reserves the right to deny any cost proposal.  Any 
increase in price of construction must be approved by District in order for property 
owner to receive increase of District payment to contractor.  

• Owner bound to terms of the written contract with Contractor. 
• The property owner will be required to provide written acceptance of the completed 

work in order for the District to issue payment to the Contractor.  Failure by the property 
owner to provide written acceptance will not alleviate the property owner’s responsibility 
to pay the Contractor for the completed work.   

• Property owner shall indemnify the District for all claims for damages arising out of the 
work performed at the property. 

 
Scenario 5 

• If the District is rehabilitating or replacing a main line sewer under a construction 
contract, private property owners may participate in this program and have their house 
connection renewed at no cost to the property owner.  

• For circumstances where the length of the house connection or other factors make full 
renewal exceed $10,000 in cost, the District reserves the right to renew the house 
connection under Scenario 4 where the District pays $10,000 and the property owner 
would be required to pay for any work in excess of the $10,000 limit.   

• For Scenario 5, contracts and/or price quotes between the property owners and their 
contractors must be submitted to Utility Services for review to verify the reasonableness 
of the scope of work and cost proposal.  The District reserves the right to deny any price 
proposal.  Any increase in price of construction must be approved by District in order for 
property owner to receive increase of District payment to contractor.  
 

FURTHER 
RESOLVED: The District’s Sewer Lateral Revolving Fund, established in 2019, shall be 

renamed the Sewer House Connection Revolving Fund.  Funding for Scenarios 
1, 2 & 3 of the Sewer House Connection Program is authorized from the Sewer 
House Connection Revolving Fund. 

 
FURTHER 



BUREAU OF PUBLIC WORKS        July 12, 2023 ■ 89 
 
 
RESOLVED: Funding for Scenarios 4 & 5 of the Sewer House Connection Program is hereby 

authorized from the Clean Water Program Rate Stabilization Fund in addition to 
any applicable grant money. 

 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 

      Scott W. Jellison 
Chief Executive Officer  

 
 
 

On motion made by District Chairman DiBella and duly seconded, 
the report was received and resolution adopted by unanimous vote 

of those present. 
 
 
 

OPPORTUNITY FOR GENERAL PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 

No one from the public appeared to be heard. 
 
 

ADJOURNMENT 
 

The meeting was adjourned at 5:38 PM 
 
ATTEST: 
 

 
John S. Mirtle    _________________ 
District Clerk        Date of Approval 


	#4 -Acceptance of Sewers Built by DPA.pdf
	Sewers In
	Built By



	Click for Minutes: 
	Click for Materials: 


